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sereface.

In a former venture,* somewhat similar to this, I prom-
ised to attempt a brief historical sketch, if that venture
met with encouragement. T now endeavor to redeem
my promise ; not because of much encouragement, but
hecause it seemns a duty. It is to be regretted that some
one mo:e able and with better (_vpp«)l'tullities had. not
undertaken the task., It is one that would require much
cire and pains under the most favorable circumstances;
for one so far removed from the place where most of the
events occurred, from existing records and documents,
from those persons most familiar with the legends and tra-
_ditions of our family — the difficulties are much increased.

The intelligent man desires to know something of the
past ; not onlv of the world and of his country, but also
of his family. In a country like our -own, -where the
population is ever changing, ever shifting like the sands
upon the seashore, it may be often dnﬁcult sometimes
impossible, for a man to trace his genealogy to a remote
period.

The information we may gather and preserve, in. affairs
pertaining to our family history, will be found interesting,
perhaps useful, to those who follow us. It is true, as some
of my young relatives have remarked, that our ancestors

* LETTERS AND POEMS, 1880.
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were not illustrious, and that their exploits look rather
prosy in print.  This should not, however, be pleaded
in defense of ignorance. An infinitesimal part of the world
becomes famous. ) : .
" Through kindness of Mr. 8. W. Pennypacker, of Thil-
adelplia, T am much indebted to his wak on « Pheenix-
ville and Vicinity ” for informaticn in the first three chap-
ters of this sketch. My thanks are due also to Mr. Quay,
of Harrisburg, for'a volume of the * Archives of Pennsyl-
vania” ; to Mr. J. A. Biddle, of Williamsburg, Pa., and
to Mr. W. C. Wersler for information concerning the
‘Wersler family, and to many otker friends in Chester Co.
. for old letters, documents, etc. Without the liberal sub-
scription- and encouragement received from Mr. Julius.
B. Anderson, of this place, this work would not have
been underiaken. Following are the names of others who
contributed in advance for the work: John W., Jer-
ome B. and Charles A. Anderson, J. A. Biddle, Mrs.
A. M. Rapp, W. C., W. L., Milton and George, Sr., Wers-
ler, and Jobn Hampton.
Jrures A, Lioyp.
Dixon, I11., Janaary 1, 1833.
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FAMILY HISTORY.

CHAPTER L

JAMES ANDERSON,
Arrival in dmerica.—** Selling Passage.”’—Elopement and
Marriage.— Reconciliation.— Buying « Home.—Church
Creed.
N the year 1707 a sailing vessel nright have been seen
plowing its way through the waves of the Atlantic,
% towards the shores of America. Among its passengers
¥ who were going to seek their fortunes in the New
. World was a Scotch vouth, by the name of James Anderson.
Tratition says that he was pror. It was the censtom for
many of the poorer class who came to America at that
time to enter into the serviee of some one who advanced
the * passage monev.” and hind himeelf fo work for such
persem until the amount of indebtedness was discharged.
This was termed = zelling passage” and seems to have been
much in voeue, '
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There lived in Chester Valley, in Chester connty,
Penusylvania, at the time of which we are speaking, a
Welsh fariner by the name of Thomas Jerman, It issaid
also that he was a noted Quaker preacher.* Be that as it
may, he was doubtless farmer as well as preacher, and
needed help on his farm, for when the ship which bore
voung Anderson to America arrived, we find Mr. Jerman
searching among the new-comers for a farm hand. It
happened that he and Anderson struck a bargain, accord-
ing to the custom mentioned above, and James Anderson
hecame a member of Mr. Jerman’s family. Jerman is
said to have been in conifortable circumstances, and had.
what seems to have been of more importance to the young.
Scotchman, a daughter.  She was donbtless interesting and
attractive, for Anderson surrendered his heart to her, and
succeeded in winning hers in return. A difficulty, however,
arose: he had gained the danghter's consent to hecome his
wife, but the father wonld Ly no means sanction the mar-
riage. 'The young couple overcame this ohstacle by eloping,
and Miss Elizaheth Jermant became the wife of James
Anderson.

Little is kmown of subsequent cvents.  There was a
reconcilintion, however, for in 1713, six years after Ander-
son’s arrival in’ America, Jerman advauced a part of the
money with which Anderson hought & farm. This farm
comprised three Imndred and forty acres, heing in a section
of comtry then considered an mnbroken wilderness, It
lies two and one-half miles from Pheenixyille, and is now in

* Pennsylvania Archives, Vol. X, Second Series. _
+ By some other anthorities it is stated that her name was Margaret,
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JAMES ANDERSON,

the midst of a thickly scitled and wealthy country. For
this farm Anderson paid £120 (about $600), his father-in-
law advancing a part of the purchase-money, as hefore
stated. On the south side of Pickering Creek, .the young
couple built themselves a home. It was not a pretentions.
oue, for the honse was built of logs and contained hut one
room, one door and one window. To this primitive man-
sion Anderson took his young wife, where, as far as we
know, they lived a happv life, while he tilled the soil, and
became prosperous.  Although his home was an humble
one, it was not among the poorest, since we are told that
some of the carly sottlers in this vicinity lived in caves,
The houses were huilt of logs and had but one room un-
less the necessities of the family required two. -There wus
frequently but one door, and windows appear to have been
a luxury, The light was generally admitted through holes
between the logs.  When necessary these were closed. The
hare ground constituted the fluor. The fire places extended
neross the entire end of the honse, and -into them large
logs were thrown, which frequently burned for several days,
The chimneys were made by making a network of vines
and twigs around four upright poles, and plastering the
inside with clay. A hole was then ent throngh the logs in-
to the chimneyv, *

James Anderson was the first actual resident of what
was known as the “ Pickering tract,” and. the first settler in
what afterward hecame “ Schuylkill Township.” When Le
moved into his new home hiz nearest neighbor lived three

® Annals of Pheeixville and its vicinity
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miles away; now (1882) there is a thriving city within a
shorter distance. His descendents, hy the cldest son in
cach generation, continue to build and live on this land.

James Anderson’s oldest c¢hild was the first child of
European parents born in this vicinity. In church creed
the Andersons were originally Episcopulians, and to this
sect James Anderson probablv belonged.

Anderson was the first to introduce garlic into ﬁclm\l-
kill Township. Following the Swedish custom of sowing
it for early pasture for cows, he sowed it on his furm in
1%30. From his place it scattered over the adjoining farms,
He was Supervisor of IHighways in 1728,

An old nnmber of a newspaper pnblished in Pennayl-
vanin says: '

* The posterity of James Anderson remain with us,
though many have emigrated westward.”*

* ¢« The Jeffersonlan,” I believe, published in West Chester. I have
been unable to ascertain the number of children James Anderson had
nor the date of his death. I was informed that there was on record at
‘West Chester a wll] by his wife's father, Thomas Jeunan but { had no
opportunity to search for it or examineit.
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('HAPTER 11

PATRICK ANDERSON.

Fnst child born of European parents in Schuylkill Town-
ship.— Builds a mill on Pickering Creek.— Ben the darkey. -
as three wives.— His romaniic meeting with Ann
Baton —Commsissioned Captain in the Revol
War.—Ransacking of the homestead by the Brilish.—
Servu's n the army.— Is elected in the Asaembh/ — Death.

ATRICK ANDERSON. the oldest son of _Jmnes
Anderson, was born July 24, 1719,  Although little
is known of his childhood and youth, the active

&. part which he took in the stirring times of the
Revolutionary War enables us to gather from public rec-
ords and other sources some facts of his later history.

As intimated in the preceding chapter, Patrick Ander-
som was the first child born of Enropean parents in that
vicinity. On the death of his father he inherited the
homestead,* and doring the Revolutionary War was the

* The old Anderson homestead is within about two miles of the fam-
ous Valley Forge. There are many of these iron works in Pennsylvania,
called - rorges. ’ This one was situated in Great.Valley. hence its name

* Valley Forge.” made historic hy Washington's terrib| 3 winter there
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head of a family. In 1735 he built a2 mill on his farm
on Pickering (‘reek this heing the third built in bchmlklll
Township.

Concerning his domestic affairs littlé is known. He
owned one of the few slaves then existing in Chester ('onn-
ty. Thiswas un old darkey called “Ben” Patrick was
married three times. Concerning his first two wives noth-
ing is now known. The name of the last wife was Ann
Baton.  As the manner of their acquaintance and the
suhsequent results were quite romantic, they' may be worth
relating.

Aun Baton was a voung lady who had come into the
neighborhood to teach scho_ol. On one occasion she fell
into a stream, probably Pickering Creck, and Patrick being
near, or attracted by her cries, he- came gallantly to her
rescue. The result was a mutual attachment, ending in
love. As they desired to keep their communications secret,
they agreed that a hollow tree which stood near the old
T'iion Schoolhouse should serve as a postoffice.  In this-
Patrick fixed a shelf, and thither they went to deposit or
take awuy their letters.  Their secret was kept to them-
selvés for a time, but some roguish boys in the neighbor-
hood* discovered their rustic postoffice, abstracted the let-
ters they fonnd therein, informed themselves as to their
contents and replaced them.  The secret of Patrick and
Ann thus became known, They were subsequently married
and had offspring.  Anderson had children hy his former
wives.

# Said to be the sons of Jeddy and Ruth (,rmy. the htm haif sister
to Hezeklah Davis.
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While in his youth, Patrick was sent to Philadelphia to
he educated. On his return he tanght a school in a reom
“of his father’s house, which had by this time, doubtless,
been enlarged. He is thonght to have been the first
school teacher in Schuylkill Township.. In 1753 he became
overseer of the poor. S _

On January 17,1770, a petition was presented to the
Assembly of Penneylvania, by one Myrick Davis, of Chester
County, who was “then imprisoned for debt, and lying
in one of the jails of Philadelphia. In relation to his con-
tinement and petition we find the following entry in the
minutes of the Assembl\

“ February 1st, 1770, A Petition from Patrick Ander-:
son, of the 'l()WllShl]) of ‘Charlestown, in the Coum;y of
Chester, against the release of Myrick Davis. from imprison-
ment in the goal of this cityv. was presented to the House
and read.”

In 1794 Patrick sold a farm to Matthias Pennypacker,
doubtless & part of the three hundred and forty acre tract
mentioned in the preceding chapter, also the m111 which he .
had built in 1735.

- We will now turn our attention to the life of Patrick
Anderson as he figured in the Revolutionary War. = It is
stated that he was in service during the French and Indian
war,* but no f.mts have heen collected as to the part he

took.
The quarrel with England growing more determined,

the Colonial Congress, in 01'der to provide against future
difficulties, passed a resolution in Octoher, 1774, prohibiting

® Pennsylvania Archives. Vol X., p. A28, Second Series.
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the importation of all articles from Xngland -subject to
taxation. In order to carry this provision into cffect, the
Assembly also provided for the election of a “Committee of
Safety 7 for each county, whose dnty it was to enforce the
observances of the prohibitory measures, and to protect the
Continental interests in their respective counties.  Pairick
Anderson . was elected a member of the committee for
Chester County. Of this committee, Authony Wayne, after-
wards known as “ Mad Anthony,” was appoiuted chairman.
and Francis Johnson, secretary.

The Committce of Safety having suggested to the
Assembly of February 20, 1770, the necessity of strength-
ening their defense, acting on the committee’s suggest-
ion, on-March 5, the House resolved to levy and take into
pay fifteen hundred men. The previously estimated ex-
pense was £64.789 108 Pennsylvania currency, or $172,772.
One thousand of the levies was to be divided into two hat-
‘talions of riflomen, five hundred each. the remainder to he
a battalion of musketry. In March, 1996, four months
hefore the signing of the Declaration of Independence, u
captain’s commission was sent to Patrick Anderson. Al
though then fifty-seven vears of age, he accepted it, and in
a few days raised a company, which with seven others was
formed into the musketry battalion mentioned above, un-
der the command of Col. Symmmal J. Atlee®

* Atlee’s naine ncenrs in some old letters in my possession. At seven-
teen years of age he was crmmissioned captain in 1756; served in the
Forbes campaigh in 1758. and was a member of the Assembly and of Con-
gress. In 1786 he was seized with a paroxism of laughing ruptured a
bloodyvessel, and expired soon afterwards. He iy buried in Christ Chureh,
Philadelphia, near the door.
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Anderson’s company, with Atlee’s battalion, and the
two battalions of riflomen, joined General Mercer’s forces
at Amboy. Anderson arrived on the beach at Amboy on
-July 21st.  The battalion was ordered  to New York on
Auguost 11th. On the 12th they were brigaded with the
regiment of Glover and Smallwood, under the command of
Brigadier Lord Sterling. All of Anderson’s services during
" the war were with the musketry battalion.®

~ According to the return of the muster master, Ludovi¢
Sposgell, Anderson’s company, on the first . of July, 1778,
numbered 56 men.y . _

Washington, fearing an attack on New York, and
needing all the troops that could be obtained for the an-
ticipated engagement, this battalion was hurried forward
in what must have been a very incomplete state of prepar-
ation. On the 2nd of August, Col. Atlee wrote from the
camp at Perth Amboy, to the Committee of Safety, that
numbers of the soldiers were without either shirt, breeches
or stockings; that they could not be kept clean, and very
justly complained, of the want of necessaries, Were it
not that they were in the facé of the enemy, he would con-
sider it an act of cruelty to. compel them to perform on
duty. He asked for at least 500 pairs of stockings and
shirts, and 100 pairs of leather breeches. An appropria-

#For fuller.acecounts of parts taken by these three battalions sea Penn-
sylvania A:chives Vol. V, First Serles, p 21, Vol. I, p. 512, and Vol X.,
p. 193, Second Series.

+ There are fifty given, including all subordinate officers, in a lst given
on page 239. Archlves Pennsylvania. Vol. X., Second Series, It is amusing
to [x)ml: co tl:ﬂ‘ ?my one name Robert Brink,1s given under the heading
* Drum an e’ :
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tioi of £250 was made on the ith for that purpose, bat the
supplies were not received. - On the 4th Col. Atlee wrote'
again, urging their need of clothing, and saving that his
battalion would march that afternoon or next morning to
join Gen. Washington, but in a most disgraceful condition.
Three. battalions, inclading Atlee’s, were formed into a
regiment. nnder command of Col. Snmuel Miles, and were
stationed, in arranging the lines for the battle of Long
Island, at Flat Bush. In the disastrons engagement that
ensued, on the 27th of Angust they occupied an apple
orchard, upon the front, and snffered severely. Several of
Anderson’s compauy were killed.  One sergeant and unine
privates were missing, and he himself escaped at the last
moment, throngh the timely assistance of a friend. Ifis
neighbor and intimate associate, David . Parry, was killed
ut his side. It is said that the loss of hisfriend so enraged
him that it was with difficulty that he counld be withdrawn
from the field. = Col. Miles and Col. Atlee were eaptured
by the enemy, and the command of the regiment devolved
upon Col. Daniel Brodhead, of the second battalion.

In an official account of the hattle. dated the 5th of
September, he suys: ‘

““The men bebaved well, cven when the enemy were
in their rear, until a New England regiment, in the retreat,
ran through their lines and created some confusion. Twice
they compelled the foc to retire.  Many regiments were
not engaged at all, and less generalship had never heen
shown'in any army since. the art of war was mnderstood.
The men were becoming very sickly for want of clothing
aned hlankets.”
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- On September 22nd Anderson wrote to Benjamin

Frankliu as follows:
Caxp ABOVE KiNg’s BRIDGE. Sept. 22nd, 1776,
Hoxorep SiRr:
My Zeal for the Great Canse and the Difficulties

I have lately Encountered, together with our present shat-
tered condition, and my want of Instructions, from the.
1lonorable Convention, or Council. over which you preside,.
Relative to my future conduet, Obliges me to trouble your:
Honor with the following accounts and Requests, and there-
fore shall submit the following . particulars for- your con-
sideration :

Immediately after our defeat on Long Island, the com-
mand of the musketr\ Battalion Dev ol\ed on. me, I found
the nmnber of men remaining fit for Duty, to be abont
200, but the most of their Baggage, and some Even of their
arms and acgentrements Lost, and having no field officers
left, applyed to Lt. Col. Broadhead for his advice and assist-
ance, soou after he informed me the General ordered him
to annex our Battalion to the Rifle Regiment, which I at
that time Complyed with, cexpecting of further Instruct-
jons from the Convention or Council of Safety, as Colonel
Broadhead wrote you concerning it. Want of Necessaries
sowered the mens minds, Deﬁciencies' in their Stipulated
rutions hath increased it, and neglect of punctnal pay’t. of
their pay hath caunsed the Meeting and Desert in Great
numbers, with arms and so that thme is now only scarce
Eighty-three BRemaining, and they still think if they are
taken prisoners, they will not be exchanged while any
prisonersfrom the Continental army is in the Enemy’s hands,
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2. The forgoing will .necessarily show onr present
condition.

3.. Your Honor will hereby perceive that the ntmost
Excrtions are necessary to bring the men to their Duty.
"Therefore, I, with Col. Bloadheads permission, have sent
Lieut. Larry after the Deserters, he being a gentleman in
whom I can fully confide, both for his ability and faithful-
ness, and who from his knowledge of Military Duties, and -
of the state of our troops, and having heen Continually
-active in all onr movements, can fully inform your Honor
of every particular you may think proper-to enquire after.
Algo Captain Dehuff will further informn you on his arrival.

I would therefore wish to know what further orders
vou may thihk proper to Issne, and shall cheerfully obey,
and if you see cause to recruit the Battalion, Shall Recom-
‘mend several for promotion, of whose Good Dbehavior and -

" Courage I have mndonbted proof Both in Lnncr Island and
clsewhere.
I am Honored Sir, your most obedient Serv't..
PaTrICE ANDERsoN., Capt. P. B. M,
o the Honorable Benjamin Franklin, President of the
Convention of the State of Pennsylvania, at Philadelphia.”
. -The fears entertained by the men in regard to ex-
change, were occasioned by the fact that they were under
the pay and subject to the control of the Province and not
of the Continental Congress. For a long time after the
battle of Long Island the regiment was in a verv great
confusion.  There were companies without captains, and
captains without commands, so small that a sergeant could
have taken charge of them. Clothing which had heen
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sent to them had by mistake been opened and distributed
to other soldiers.

On the 24th of October, by order of the Committee of
Safety, the three Battalions were consolidated, formed into
ten companies, and the command of the third company -
given to Patrick Anderson. The regiment was retained
in the pay of the State. = From a report to the Council
on the 12th of March, 177%, it would appear that Patrick
Anderson was fhe ranking Pemnsylvania Captain: in the
Continental Army. Late in that year, however, or early in
1778, he hecame ill, and was compelled to resign. On his
return home he was elected to the Assembly, from Chester-
County, in 1778, and was re-elected in 1779, 1780 and 1781.

Soon after the battle of Brandywine, which occurred
on September 11th, 15%7, and the noise of which could be -
heard in the vicinity of Patrick Anderson’s residence, a
number of troops belonging to the British army, entered
Schuylkill Township, Chester County. This sqnad was.
fourteen thousand strong, and encamped along Nutt’s
Road, from Fountain Inn, to Flatland Ford. A part of the
troops were Hessians under the command of General
Knyphausen, whose headquarters were at the house of
Frederick Buzzard. This honse stood midway between the
C'orner Stores and a small patch of timber, now known as
the * Morris Woods.™ '

As soon as the troops were ordered to break ranks and
@o into camp, they ecommenced their depredations in the
neighborhood. The residence of Patrick Anderson was
not far from the camp, and of conrse did not escape
molestation. The family. however, had been informed of
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the approach of the soldiers and had left the premises.
‘Before going they-had secreted as many things of value as
posgible, hoping they would uot be found. Such articles as
bedding and clothing were packed away, and locked up in
burean drawers, and the honse abandoned. TLe British
knew that Anderson was away, and in the American army :
and without fear of interruption, they forced an entrance
into the dwelling and destroyed everything within. It is
said they forced the locks of the bureau drawers by thrust-
ing their bayonets through the kevholes. Theyv then help-
¢d themselves to the contents. The furniture, which had
heen left in good condition, was bioken up and used for
fuel. Mirrors and pictures were dashed upon the floor and
trampled to. picces. To the general rin of evervthing
they could lay hands upon there was one rather remarkable
exception ; a picture of George Washington had heen left
hanging in its place on the wall. this was left nnmolested,
Perhaps their respect for that brave, gowl man. though an
enemy, restrained them from laying violent hands on even
his picture. - The cattle nud sheep were slanghtered. the
meat salted, and prepared for transportation to feed the
British troops.*®

In 1361 the Assembly of Pennsylvania appointe:dl a
‘Board of Commissioners from among the residents along
the Schuylkill River, whose duty it was to % clemur” “scour,”
and make that river navigable, by making dams of lovse
stones at varions places. Some of these dams may vet he

¥ The handling of the meat was done in the parlor The biood stains
could be seen upon the boards when the house was moved in 1842.
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seen.  Among the commissioners between 1773 and 1774,
were Patrick Anderson and Abraham Lincoln, one of the
family from whom descended the martyred President.

Among the minutes of the Assembly of the same state
is found the following entry: _ .

“ At an election held agreed to law on the second
Tuesday of October in the year 1778, at Catham and the
Red Lion Districts, for representatives and connty officers,
for the County of Chester, for the ensning year, have elect-
eil the fullowing gentlemen: _

Johun Fualton, 375 votes. Pairick Anderson, 342 votes.
John Culburton, 341 “ Stephen Cochran. 339
Jos. F. Gardiner, 337~ John Flemmin, 245 «
Esquires.”
After this follows the certificate of the judgesof elect-
_ion. stating * these gentlemerrs names here mentioned to
he the highest in vote.”™

In the minutes of the Supreme Execative (‘ouncil,
under date of 1779 is the following entry:

“ A'letter from P. Anderson, of the 27th mst repre-
senting that the clection of officers in the militia have been
held in Chester (founty.  No voters who have not taken the
tost. and returus of said election by Col. GGironow, and en-
fquire into aforesaid charge.”

On February 13th, 1799, Anderson voted against a
bill providing for the aholishing of slavery from the State
of Pennsylvania. He also voted against the publication for
congideration of a further gradual abolition of slavery. He
was one of cight voting against it,
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Patrick Anderson died in March, 1793, in the seventy-
fourth year of his age.*

It was stated in the beginming of this chapter that
nothing is known of Patrick Anderson’s first two wives. It
should rather have been stated that there is no information
concerning them among the writer’s notes, and that he
was unable to gain any information in regard to them.
There may be facts known to others that the anthor did

not learn.

* See appendix A.
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CHAPTER 1L
ISAAC ANDERSON.

Builds first lime kiln.— Becomes dispalch rider for Washing-
ton.— His narrative of army life.—Is elected tothe Assem-
" bly and to Congress.— His death.

BS.AAC ANDERSON was the son of Patrick Anderson,
described in the foregoing chapter. He was born
5 on Pickering Creek, on the 23rd of November, 1760.
%o Ho was six feet four inches high, and is said to have
p()ssessed great physical, as well as intellectual strength,
Little is recorded of his domestic relations, though it is said
he was somewhat morose in disposition,

Isaae Anderson was one of the first to introduce Lom-
hardy poplars into Sehnylkill Township, and built the first
lime kiln. Among the early duties of his public life, while
ver o mere vouth. was that of carrving dispatches between
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_the headgunarters of the army under Washington at Valler
Forge and Congress, then in session at York.

The following is quoted from an article on Charlestown
Township, written by Isaac Anderson in 1802 :*

% During the Re\olntwna.ry war, General Howe with
his army paid Charles Township a visit. After the battle
of Brandywine, General Washington refreated towards
Philadelphia, but in a few days returned with his army to
meset the British. Washington marched on the Lancuster
roadl, passing the sign of the Admiral Warren during a -
dark and cl(md\ night, and formed hiz army across the
Great Vallev. about a mile west of Warren Tavern, offering
battle to the British. - The writer of this headed a small
~volunteer company of wmilitia from C(harlestown, and lay in
the tavern of the Warren during Washington's march.
"Through the dark in the morning, the Charlestown militia
took. their station on the left of the army in the South

Valley Hill. A few muskets were fired in advance of us,
and 1)1(=~enﬂ\ a friendly Indian came in. It wax. not Inte
in the morning when it hegun to rain, and roon 1»()111;0(1
down a most copions shower. It wasx said that the
ammunition had- been much damaged in  consequence.
The army filed off on the road leading to the iren works
in the Northwest of Chester Connty, throngh the township
up the Glandy Hill.  The British moved down .the valley
into Montgomery Conuty, then turncd their course west-
ward. crossing Mount Jov at Valley Forge. and encaniped

% Potter's -‘ Amerlean Monthly ” for January, 1875, pub]iélxed in
Philadeiphia. -~
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in Charles Township. General Howe had his headquarters
in the house now belonging to the heirs of Samuel Rossiter,
deceased, where he lay two or three mghts, the men plun-
dering through the neighborhood. The active Whigs
generally moved off with a wagonload of goods. All that
was left behind was taken Dby the enemy.. Cows, sheep,
hogs and poultry were taken or driven off. o

“There was at that timea magazine of cannon balls at
Vaulley Forge; and a large number of barrels of flour.
"The enemy took what suited them, invited the nelghbors
to what they conld take. then set fire to all the buildings
belonging to the Valley Forge, which, with their contents,
were reduced to ashes.  While GGen. Howe lay here, a party
was seut_into Pikeland Township. and burned a pretty ex-
tensive powder works belonging to Cougress. (This is the
mode we expressed publie property. by sa\mo' it helonged
to (‘vngress.)”

Betum the British forces had seized and. occupied
Philadelphia, Congress removed the seat of government
from that city to York, and the Comncil of Safefy with-
drew to TLancaster. Necessary communication between .
these two places and the army at Valley Forge was main-
tained by express riders who traveled between these points
on horseback.  As hefore mentionad, Isaac Anderson was
one of these express riders.  He was frequently entrnsted
with important dispatches by Washington. oomm.mder n
chief of the American Arm\

T the year 1801, (‘harles Township wus largely Deni-
ocratic. and Isaac heing an ardent Jeffersonian, that party
clected him to the Assembly of Pennsylvania. He was
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elected to Congress in 1803, serving until 1805, He was a
presidential elector in the Monroe campaign. and- ar
‘one time his name was prominently mentioned ax eandidate
for governor. Prior to his going into the Asseruhly he had
been elected a ]ushce of the peace. e vored for Monroe
in 1816.

While in the legislature in 1802, he wrore to Major T,
Howell, March Gth, as follows:

“T am happy to inform you that there i a considera-
ble portion of the legisluture pious C'hristians. of different
Denominations. Soon after I arrived a Preshyterian Eller
from Fayette County invited me to take ludgings with him.
a3 he has since told me, parely on accomnt of religion. 1
accordingly moved and abide with him in mnch friendship.
together with another gentleman of said church. It has
been remarked that there is as little morality in this Honse
of Assembly as has been known.  Notwithstanding. vou
may- be sure, Christianity admits room for the hest of us
to amend and a dayly neeessity for the exercise of all the
grace we have gotten.” -

The Congresses in which he served were the Eighth and
Ninth, (1803 to 1807) during the presidency of Jefferson.
The prineipal subjocts of interest to the country which
were discnssed during Anderson’s congressional life, were
the negotiations with quco for the purchase of Louisiana :
the negotiations and diffienlties with Spain in regard to
Florida ; -the war with the Barbara States: the attempt of
Aaron Burr to establish an empire in the Southwest. Ie
gave the Administration and all its measures his utmost
suppott.
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On the 18th of January, 1805, a resolution was offered
in the House, declaring that all hlacks born in the District
of Columbia, after the Fourth of July, 1805, shonld be
free. The resolution was loet, 31 to 7.  The list of
“ayes " is headed by the name of Isaac Anderson. Onthe
22nd of January, 1806, he voted in favor of levying a duty
of %10 on every slave imported after that date; and onthe
8th of January, 1807, he voted in favor of a hill to prohibit
the importation of slaves. after the 31st of December of
that vear.® _

On the 9th of February. 1807, Ezekiel Howell wrote’
to [saac Anderson as follows: ] . ] i

“ I am happy to hear of the harmony that subsists in
Congress the present session. but I am sorry our Chief
Mugistrate wonld withdraw himself from a Station in
which he would, I think, be supported hy a very Honorable
Majority at a. time when our papers say that we are
menanced hy and an Insurrection by Aaron Burr.in
ve very heart of ye United States. But if the President and
and Head Qf Departments have defeated his designs, I
should think it very proper to continue snch men as can do
such great things, without yo help of ye militia, or a Stand-
ing Army. Please to communicate to me all you know (or
can consistantly with ye office you hold.) Respecting Burr
and bis party, I have heard of Swarthont and the Doctor,
‘with others of the party heing made prisoners together—
of the taking of a number of Boats that were huilt and
named by Coll. Burr—further I know not.”

*® o Phﬁ-nixville and its Vicinity.”
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The following verse bears the signature of ¥ Isauc
Anderson,” but it is not certain that it was the person
whose history is here written who wrote it, but the manu-
script bears evidences of age, and indicates that he may
have been the writer. It was written concerning an old
Welshman, Dennis Demsey, who had been a soldier in the
Revolutionary. - He became a mere sot through the use of
grog. When intoxicated he said that he had a <D™ for
Dennis, a “ D ” for Demsey, and another « D7 for “ damna-
tion,” because he never expected to get to Heaven. Ife had
always said a soldier should not die in bed. Oue time while
intoxicated he was frozen to death in the snow. Heuce the
following verses by Isaac Anderson: o '

* % Dennis, a brave and valiant soldier:
In onr Revolution no one was bolder ;
To fight the British their Magog and Gog,
But fell a MartyT to his favorite Grog.”

Isaac Anderson died in 1838,  The following i3 the
inscription on his tombstone : _

% In memory of Isaac Anderson, Esq., who departed
this life Oct. 27th, A, D. 1838, . Aged 8 vears. ¢This
day o great man and a Patriaréh hath fallen” . Whare I
am there shall also my Servant he.™

* See Apendix B.
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CHAPTER IV,
JULIUS ANDERSON.

Son of the third wife.—1Is of quiet disposilion.—Becomes o
tanner by trade.—Jotns the American Army in the War
of ‘1812.— Adventures at Marcus Hook.— Iafe at <“Scrab-
ble.”’— Teaches school and afterwards « keepe store.””

7" will be remembered that Patrick Anderson had
three wives. By the third he had a son, Julius
3 Anderson. He was a quiet man, and being domestic
7 in his habits, and not taking an active part in public
life, but little has come down to us concerning him. He
was a tanner by trade, but it is not known that he followed
it exelusively for a livelihood. At one time he was tax col-
lector and often came home with a large sum of money
tied up in a cotton handkerchief. For a while he followed
the profession of teaching.
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He joined the American army in the War of 1812
After-the British troops had destroved Washington, it wis
feared that they wonld make an attempt to enter Philadel-
phia.  The Americans, to prevent this, made extensive
preparations. - Intrenchments and fortifications were
thrown up along the Delaware River and at other places.
The Company to which Juling Anderson helonged was
stationed at Marcus Hook for several weeks. Here their
Captain, & man by the name of Davis, was taken sick and
the command was given to Sammel L. Auderson. This
young man was a Lieatenant.  He and Wesley™ Anderson.
wlm was a sergeant. were of the family of f\n(lexson\ whose
history we have been tracing. The company, as hefore
intimated. was under the command of John I. Davis.
Nothing of importance occurred to bring the troops into
-active service, It i said that one Thonias Russiter relieved
the monotony of camp life .byv delivering mock sernions.
Other means was regorted to tu pass time awav. until the
alarm oceasioned by threatened approach of the British
subsided, and the company returned home. While in
camp at-Marcus Hook, Juling Anderson contracted a cold.
from which he never recovered. It finally resulted in con-
swnption, of which disease he died in 1822,  The writer
obtained a copyv of the inventory of his personal oﬂ'c-(re
from the records of Chester Connty.*

When Juling Anderson married, he went to live at a
place called Serabble, now Charlestown. The locality
-derived its naume from the fact that the comntry heing

" # Nee Appendix (.
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rough and unproductive, people had a “ hard scrabble ” to
make a living, hence the name “Hard Scrabble,” or for
hrevity, « Scrabble.” He married Harriet Davies, second
child of Hesekiah Davies, mentioned in the sueceeding
chapter.  He lived for a time at West Chester, and moved
thence to (harles Township. ~ Here he carried on the busi-
ness of tanning, previous to going into the war. He tanght
=chool a while at the Pickering Schoolhonse, and one year
took the census. .

It is thought that he was not 'in the army more than
threc months. His company was under command of Major
Hartman* When he returned from the war, he lived on a

. farm until his death. It is said that he abandoned his
trade of tanning. Thomas Davies came to help carry on
the farm work, and by this time his eldest son, Jerome,
was able to render assistance.  The latter was one of the
pupils of Major Hartman at Timberton. He rode to
school on horse-buck and had to start very early in the
morning in order to arrive at school in time.

One day Julins took one of his little daughters, Mary, -
to school for the first time, but she became homesick, began
to crv. and her elder sister, Ann. had to return home with
her. ' '

While at “ Scrabble,” or Charlestown, Anderson kept
store. For a while, it is thonght, he was in partuership

* Major Hartman was still living when I commenced collecting mater -
ial for this history. I was on the point of ealling on him to obtain Infor-
mation, but concluded to visit a cousin in Stonington first, as it was late
in the season. “Supposing he should die in the meantime.’’ 1 thought, as1
departed. After an absence of about two weeks, I returned to Chester
County, expecting to get some interesting facts from him, but was aston-

“ighed 1o learn that he had died while I was absent
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with a man by the name of Bodley. He was afterward in
partnership with his brother-in-law, Joseph Quay. Quay
was somewhat intemperate, and drank considerable rnm,
as shown by an account in an old ledger of their business
in 1802.%

It has thns far been impossible to obtain the date of
hiz marriage. In the old ‘ledger referred to (page 10)
is an account for “ House Expenses.” If it is Mr. Ander-
son’s account, as it doubtless is, he was probably married
uear that time. There is also a previous account of Julins
Anderson extending from April 3rd to November 232nd,
1802, total amouant 14£, 2s., 11d. The credit side of all
acconnts in this old ledger is alwavs marked - « Per
Contra.”

Although Mr. Anderson hlmself was a tempe1 ate man,
Serabble seems to have been a hard place. It is said that
‘there was a great deal of drinking, carousing and fighting

"going on. At one of these wild revelries, a fight occurred. -
Julma Anderson was called. or appeared apon. the scene,
and the turmoil ceased at unce.

He once burned & kiln of lime at this placet and
kept the lime for sale.  He was then far advanced in the
stages of consnmption. About this time he stuid over night
with another of the Anderson families when it was obseued
that he conghed nearly all night.

He was a man of few words, aud quiet in disposition.

———— —_

* The old Ledger i3 in my ession. I obtamed it of Mm;on “ ersler,
whose father b een one of the administrator:
t One statement in my notes i3 to the: eﬂeet that the kin was in
Cedar Hollow *



JULICS ANDERSON,

He had good government in his family, but was rather
‘severe. It is said that if the children became too noisy
while he was reading, a stamp of his foot on the floor
stopped the tumult immediately. Although for some time
previous to his death he had been gradually passing away,
vet he dropped off suddenly at last. He had been walking
around just a little while before he died. ~ Efforts to find
his grave were nnsuccessful, although he was probably
buried in the Presbyterian burying ground in Great Valley.
Julins Anderson was a great reader, and in his time
was considered well educated. . On the near approach of
death, he said that the greatest desire he had to live was
that he might educafe his children, for an education is
something that cannot be taken away. He leff a - large
family, the youngest, John, being then only about one year
old. Among his children, Hezekiah D. and Anne resem-
" bled him most in character. He died some time in the
carlv part of April, 1822. near the hour of midnight.
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('IIAPTER V.

HEZEKIAH DAVIES,

Isof Welsh descent.— Nathaniel Davies.— Letter fromJefferson
Davies.—Bovyish pranks of Hesekiah.— Takes part in the
Revolutionary War.—1Is caplured by the British, and <s
afterwards exchanged.— Elopement with Anne Schenck,
of Long Island.—Is elected to the Assembly.— Death.

AVING uow briefly traced she history of the Ander-
gon branch of the family down to where a member
of the Davies family entered it by the marriage of

WGP Julins anderson to Harriet Davies, we will go back
in time and review what is known of the Davies family.
Hezekiah Davies was born in Charles Township,
Chester County, Peunsylvania, on November 22nd, 1747,
and was baptized, while an infant, by the Rev. Smmuel
Evans. He was the son of Nathaniel and Hannah Davies,
of the above named township and county. As there seems
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to be no report of his father’s birth, and as Hezekiah was
accustomed to tell the young folks “how people used to do
in Wales,” it ig probable that he obtained the information
from his father. ~ The Davies family is of Welsh descent,
and Nathaniel was probably the first to come to this
country from Wales. The writer has in his possession
letters from Wales, wriften by Philip Davies; they are
addressed to Hezekinh Davies, his uncle,

It is a matter of regret that so little is known of
Nathaniel Davies and his family. ~ That he left near rela-
tives in Wales there is no doubt.  Tradition says that he
had a brother who moved to the South in early times, and
that from him was descended Jefferson Davis, who became
president of the Southern Confederacy. Desirous of ob-
taining the facts in the case, the writer addressed a letter
to Mr. Jefferson Davis in 1879, and received the following
reply:

“ Beavvoir P. 0., HARRN)\ Co., Miss.

h Lirs A. Lroyp, Esq.,

I am sorry that I canuot reply to you as positively
as the purpose of your enquiry demands. So far as 1
know, the name of Hezekiah does not appear in the list of
my father’s family. The name of Nathaniel I do vaguely
recollect to have heard mentioned as being ‘a relative at
some remote period. - '

It may be proper to mention that I was the voungest
of a large family, that I was sent abroad in my boyhood
for education, that I did not return until after I was grown.
In the meantime my father had died, that I went immedi-
ately into the T. 8. Army. where I remained mmtil of mid.
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dle age, so that I have less than the usmal opportunity to
know much of my family’s history.

I regret that I cannot aid you in the efforts with which
I fully sympathise, having learned too late my mistake in
not getting from older members of the family such facts
as would here enable me satisfactorily to auswer your
inquiry. Respectfully Yours, _

JEFFERsOX Davis.”

Inasmuch as the writer of the above professes to know
but little of the history of his family, but in that little the
name of « Nathanijel ” appears, it seems that there is either
some truth in the tradition, or a remarkable co-incidence
in names. It is true that Jefferson Davis spells the latter .
part of his name without the “e;” some of the descend-
ants of Nathaniel occasiopally wrote it in the same man-
ner., and always pronounce it as thongh spelled without
the = e _ o
' Few facts have been preserved concerning the youth

ot Hezekiah. While in later days he seems to have been
full of fun. in bovhood he was full of mischief, as shown
by the following unecdote.

One snowy night the thresheis were at his tathel ;]
place. 'The proprietor of the threshing machine was also
the owner of - a pig, and it was his custom to carry home
each night for the animal an armful of straw from what-
ever place he chanced to he at work. Young Hezekish
ohserved his habit ; he also knew that the poor man was
somewhat deaf, and resolved to have some fun. On the
wintry evening ahove mentioned, he accordingly concealed
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himself with a mateh in hand, in a fence corner where the
man passed the house, He came, presently, with his load
of straw strapped npon his back. As he passed the corner,
" Hezekiah slipped out, applied the ignited match to the
hundle, and again concealed himself. The fire had got
well under way before the cracking and the snapping of
the flames attracted the man’s attention, On perceiving
. what was done he suddenly dropped his burden and -looked
inquiringly around. 1Ile saw no one, bui evidently knew
who the culprit was, for he muttered “ D—m yon, Hezzy,
that is some of your work,” and walked on. Hezekiah had
had his fun, bat the pig did not get straw that night.

Another prank of later vears is related as follows:

An illiterate Negro, uamed Cornish, desired to become
a tenant in one of Mr. William Latta’s tenant houses, and
to he mnré_ sure of success, asked Hezekiah to write a
recommendation for him. As it happened, Mr. Latta read
the recommendation aloud, and hoth were surprised at
tinding it close with the donbtful compliment, “that .
although Cornish was honest, it was ueéessary for the
chickens to roost high.” The Negro’s name was John
Corunish, and it seems he had a failing of robbing hen-
roosts, - On hearing his character thus set forth, he ex-
claimed : % I did not think that of Mr. Davies.”

Hezekiah was a man about five feet, ten inches high,
with blue, but rather small, eves. He read a great deal,
and kept himself well informed.  Voluutarily, he never
took an active part in politics, although he took a great
interest in public affairs. He was a good business man,
and a saddler hy trade. though interested during a part . of
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his life in fariming. He was often called upon to act as
arbitor in difficulties between neighbors, though he' never
accepbed the position without much urging. He wasnever
_ @ very hard worker, and in the latter part of his life took
"matters easily, and walked about a great deal with his cane
and his old white dog, Buff. ~He generally, in his walks,
followed the same route, and even knew the number of
. steps from one point to another.

Hezekiah Davis, living during the thrilling times of
the Revolutionary War, took an active part in it. He was
for a time Lientenant in Colonel Montgomery’s Regiment
of Flying Camp. . One account says he was captured by
the British at Fort Washington, Nov. 16, 1776 ; another
anthority states that he was taken at the battle of Long
- Island. He was held for some time a prisoner on Long
Island. While in the hands of the British he was quarter--
master, and as he had to attend somewhat to the supplies
of the prisoners, he had greater freedom than the average
soldier. . For a while he boarded at the house of a Tory
* family, by the name of Schenck. Nicholas Schenck was a
Hollunder, and did not believe in the cause for which the
Americans fought. He had a danghter, Anne. Davies was
then about 32 years of age. One day, with a hard sub-
stance (it is said with a diamond), he scratched his name
upon the window pane. The young lady afterwards observ- -
ing it, wrote under it the word “ Rebel,” to show her con-
tempt for his canse. It is said that an English officer
seeing the inscriptions, added the word © Devil,” so that it
now stands, © Hezekiah Davies, Rebel Devil.”  Following
are other inseriptions, on the same pane, though not in the



HEZEKIAH DAVIES, 43

order of their dute: = A. R. Nchenck, 1807, Sept. 7,7 = J.
Schenck, 1814,” « A, Schenck, 1818,” < 8. Schenck, 1821.™*

Notwithstanding differences in politics, the two con-
ceived a tender passion for each other, and as the old
people would not give their consent to the marriage, they
eloped. The marriage took place on October 29, 1780, at
Flat Lands, Kings Connty, Long Island. The ceremony
was performed by the Rev. Nepianus (or Mepianns) Van-
sinder. 'The Schencks are said to have heen wealthy, and
when young Davies took his bride to church for the first
time in her new home, it is related that she caused (uite a
sensation with her silks and jewelry. '

In speaking of Davies, while in the hands of the
British, a note copied from an eastern paper of modern
date says, “Lieutenant Hezeliah Davies, of Colonel
Montgomery’s Regiment, of Flying Camp, was captured at
Fort Washington, November 16, 1576, and was imprisoned
in New York, Te received from Mr. Pintard £64,15s, 2d :
from Mr. Beatty £143, 7, 4d; 80 weeks™ board from Mr.
Skinner; $266 from Mr. Admmns, and $1496 from Mr.
Bradford. ‘He was exchanged December 8. 1780, at Elizu-
bethtown. and returned to his home in Chester Connty,
Pa.” For what purpose these amonnts were received is not
stated, perhaps for public, or army distribution.  While a
-prisonér he wrote the following letter to Lieutenaut Colonel
Thomas Bull, of West Nantmil, Chester Connty. Pennsvl-
vania :

. #* This pane of glass is now in the possession of Mrs A M. Wrapp,
of Schuylkill, Chester County Pennsylvania—-1881.
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. LoNe IsLAND, 2ud August, 1779..
. Decer Colonel:—

Yours I received ye 31st of May last (untill
which time I should a conceived myself neglected only for
the confidence I place in You) by which I am informed of
your reliance on Mr. John Potts assisting me. I wrote to
him upon sight, but as yet received no answer with regard
-of his endeavoring to effect me a parole. I have the satis-
faction of informing yom that I enjoy a perfect state of

- health, both of body and mind, for the length of my. cap-
tivity has made it almost habitnal, for what seemed a
hardship at first, is rendered miore easy by patience, and a
thorough resignation to fate.

My dear Sir, I cannot form the least distant hope of
being shortly released, but have the pleasure of informing
you, that we are well supplied. I remain still at the same
place.  Vanderbilt and family are in health, would he
desirous of often hearing from you (if opportunity serves),
my compliments to all enquiring friends, whilst I remain

your Friend and H. b. b. e Serv’s, .
- HEezekiaH Davies.

X.B. Our gentlemen retain a. competieuc\ of health.
1 intend this by Lleut Robmson who is admitted out on
parole.”

On the back of this letter is the following * note
addlepsed to the same person:

% CHESTER Towxsurr, Aug, 7, 1832.
Denr and. Respected Sir:—
_ The enclosed was w1ote upwards of 0‘3
~ years past and was intended to he sent hy Lieut. Robinson.
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who was admitted on parole, but went seoner than I ex-
pected—the other day examining my papers, in which I
found this and a role containing the names of the officers
and soldiers belonging to our Begf. which may be of service
to the Jndges.

As the 21st of this month is appointéd by the Judges
for the applicants to meet at West Chester, would be glad
should your health permit, to meet you there, before we
fight our last battle with that all conquoring death, who is
sure to conquor.

It therefore behooves us that we be prepared that we
may have our bullets in that Bourne where we would not
.msk a parole, nor wish to be exchanged.

" Believe me, Dear Sir, to be \nth Senim’t of Esteem
To Col. Thomas Bull. H. Davigs”

On the last page was written at the first writing
(1779). a-list of those who had died sud married. Among
the latter was a list of army officers.  Mr. Davies very
naively adds, « and I have reason to Judge several others
will follow their example.” It will be remembered that he
married Miss Anne Schenck the following vear.

Isaac Andersou, in his skefch of Chmlestown Town~
. ship. says that Hezekiah Davies was made a prisoner in the
Battle of Tong Island. He took an active part in the
heginning of the present century in the politics of the day,
heing elected a member of the General Assembly of Penn:
sylvania, in 1803, and again in 1804,

Hezekiah Davies was regular in his habits, but, as was
customary in‘those days, took his bitters.” He wonld
get & quart at stated intervals. and if through liherality
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to friends, the supply was exhausted, he would do withount
until it was time to have the bottle refilled. He chewed
tobacco, but never smoked. An old cane, with a T shaped
top, cut from the woods, is- now in the possession of Mr.
George Wersler. Mr. Wersler says Mr Davies often
extended his cane and with its top caught him by the neck
to pull him towards him. With this cane and bushy tailed
Buff, his old white dog, he strolled about a good duz] in his
old age. Buff always wunted to follow, hnt on Sunday his -
master woald say, “ Buff, I am going to church to-day:
you murt stay at home.” Buff wou]d then not: attempt to
follow.

It is said that when he chose, lus language was very
sarcastic and cntting, and that he generally kept himself
well informed. He was quick tempered and passionate.
He had a great dislike for killing anything. So great was
his dislike that he sometimes e\cha.no'ed work with a
neighbor in order to get him to kill a clnol\eu for him. He
was of a merry, jovial disposition, and, as we have seen,
very fond of playing tricks. Mr. John W. Anderson, when
a little hoy, was one of his favorites, and was called “Little
Jack.” When he came into the presence of Mr. Davies,
the latter would exclaim :

“ Who comes there?” Little Jack was taught to =ay,

« Little Jacky Jingo.” '

“ Don’t steal all my sheep away.”

Yes, I will. Tl steal them one hy one, £71 T get them
all away.”
“ Well, don’t take the black one.”
“'That’s the one I intend to take. Grand-pap.” and then
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Graundfather Davies would langh to see how well # Little
Jacky Jingo ” could go through with his part.

Mr. Davies drew a pension, hut what- amount per year.
has not been ascertained. He was accustomed to go to-
Philadelphia to receive the money.

The following is a document written by H. Davies,
though not signed :

“« Ty the Honorable Secretary of Wari—

These are to certify that I kuow the petitioner,
Michejn Posy, Enlisted in Capt. Jacob Hetherlings .com-
pany, Chester Co. Flying Camp, Col Montgomery’s Reg.
Commanded by Lien. Col. Thomas Bull, enlisted about -the
16th of Angust, 1776, was taken prisoner on the 16th of
November ensuing, was sent out on parole about the mid-
dle of January, 1777; that I was a present- witness, and
‘further, I know not.” o :

If he was an eye witness to ull this it seems highly
probu-ble that he was taken prisotier at the same time.

- Hezekial’s father had an opportunity to take up land
under the grant (or whatever the usual form was) from
William Penn, and might have taken up good land in the
Valley, but he refused it, and took up stony land among
the hills in Charlestown Township.

Hezekiah Davies was fond-of the beauntifal. If is said
vellow was his favorite color. If lie was sent for calico, he
would bring home yellow, as he deemed it the prettiest
color.  Whenever the name of a strange lady was men-
tioned to him he would ask,  Is she handsome? Once on
hearing that a certain woman was to be hung, he said
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“What a pity ! she is so beauntifal"” His son Thomas once
paid. attention to a young lady whom Mr, Davies had never
seen. He opposed the intimacy of the young people. One
Subbath he went to church, and on returning home, gave
an animated description of a pretty young lady whom he
had seen. He was surprised to find the person was the one
he had opposed #s a prospective daughter-in-law. .1t is said
that all his objections vanished, and he allowed the young
couple to go on with their conrtship.

Near Diumond Rock School-house, in Great Vaulley, a
Welshman had built a honse before the Revolutionary war-.
Hezekiah Davies weut to this house to a- sale at one time
while young. -He rode on a horse behind his nncle. A
number of books were to be sold. The honse was built by
a spring, which still marks the spot, bnt mere traces of
tue house remain.  The British soldiers often stopped at -
Diamond Rock, on their way to and from a hospital they
hadat Yellow Springs. It is -said that William Penn
refusel to sell or grant a part of the land around Dinmond
Rock, thinking it might contain \a.hmb]e minerals. . _

Hezekinh not uul} read, but wrote a great deal. ~ One -
of the most valunhle mannscripts has been lost. It was
Jent to Rev. R M. Patterson* who was writing a history of

the Great Vullev Presbvterian Chureh. Mr. Patterson
speaks as follows of this nmnuscrlpt of Mr. Davies; in his
church history:

] have met with a M 8. which was written by a

* T had.a correspendence with Mr, Patte!son, of Philadelphia, asking
him to send me the manuseript but he had lost all trace of It
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meniber of the church about the begiuning of the present
century. It is excessively amusing, and very personal,
though evidently onesided. It i3 entitled “The First
Chronicles of the Sheep-fold,” and in imitation of Script-
ure, gives an outline history of the congrezation under the
head of a flock of sheep Under this revenue matter it
says that Mr., Evans’ yearly share of the fleece was twenty-
five pounds. It is highly ludicrous to read the jndgments
which are passed on the successive ministers from the
money standpoint,  Mr. Rowland was a faithfal Shepherd,
knowing and doing the will of his master, the Great Shep-
herd, and above all was moderate in the division of the
tleece. ddbove all, Mr. Griffith ¢ was contented with the fags
of the fleece’ Happy student of Phil. Iv, I1! \/Ir
Simonton “did not pluck hard on the fleecs’  Mr. Gemumil
¢ well pointed ont the paths the flock should walk in, conld
point out the most wholesome blades for their welfure; in
short, he was much caressed by the flock, bnt was severe
in shearing, for he took fleece, tags, rags, bobtn.ll, and - all
not enongh

The fullowmo' satire on church a.ﬁd:ll‘i was written by
him when he was elbhtv-sm vears of age.

« C‘lmrlt\ is lost, buried in oblivion.
Withont clmut_y there i3 no religion,
For the affection of sanctity

Is a blotch on the fuce of 1’1et\

In charity it must be confessed,

Much crood has been done b\ \Ieth()(llat
The.sect I do not wish to stwm.u:ue,

It they do not convert, they humunize.
I find no fault with their profession,
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But with one of their preacher’s transgression,
Who, by the stormy, pestilential Ayres,
Amongst their good seed sowed the tares,
Who says if they follow his direction,
They are purged from sin—they are all perfection,
And all their sins committed before,
Are blotted out—they can sin no more,
And his doctrine will bear the test,
‘Although his Bible reads—.Non bonaem est.
"¢ I've made our church a clear fountain’
Since I drove old Beelzibub o’er the Welsh Mountain,
Some of you gay, “ Alas! alack! '
We fear presby and Baptist will drive him back.”
Be not afraid—back he dare not come,
For he fears the sonnd of my pulpit dram,
Presby and Baptist only hop on; .
Their preaching sounds like pop of pop gun,
And their churches are ever in schism,
There is no troe church but Methodism,
1 told you once, I tell you again,
You are all made perfect, Joy in amen.”
It is related: that at a “moving” of one John Hodge,
after the work was completed and they were sitting aronnd
having o social chat, some one proposed that Davies extem-
porise some poetry for their amusement. - Taking his pipe
from his mouth,* he began :
“ (), Johnny Hodge,
You've made your lodge
Amongst the hawks and owls,
Pl wager 4 gill
Tpon this hill
You'll not raise many fowls.”

*In the beginning of this chapter it was statéd: that Davies chewed
tobacco, but never smok~d I have sinece learned that this statemeut is
incorrect He smoked but never chewed.
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The following account is taken from a newspaper
published in 1813:

“ANNIVERSARY OF AMERICAN INDEPENDENCE.

“ Pursnant to public notice, the Great Valley Volunteer
Light Infantry, (commanded by John G. Wersler) paraded
at Bartholomew and Jones’ store, in East Whiteland Town-
ship, Chester County, on Saturday the Tth day of August,
1813, in commemoration of the day that gave birth to our
national Independence.

« After performing a number of military evolutions be-
cuming oitizen soldiers, they marched to an adjacent green,
near an excellent spring of water, both shaded by hand--
some groves. The business of the day commenced by
firing & volley. They (then accompunied by a large con-
course of respectable citizens) partook of an elegant dinner
‘prepured for the occasion, at that place by William Bones.
After which Mr. Hezekiah Davies was chosen president and
Mr. John Reese vice president of the day, and the following-
toasts were drank, accompaniel by the firing of volleys,
and martial music. Among the toasts were the following:

'« Hezekiah Davies—* United we stand, divided we fall.
May the tongue be palsied that would attempt to divide—
1 vollev—3 cheers.—Hail Liberty. _

"¢ Johu Reese—* The Great Valley Light Infantry.—
May they always be ready to aveuge the fair at Hampton.’
Numerous other toasts followed.”

Davies was appointed Lieatenans in Capt. Cualberton’s
. company, Flying Camp, Sept. i. 17i6. The commission
wus signe| hy Benjamin Franklin. The regiment to which
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he helonged was raised in Chester County, and went first
to Fort Lee, which was erected by a corps of the Flying
Camp. From Fort Lee they were ordered to Fort Wash-
ington, where an engagement took place, continuing from
early morn until late in the afternoon. The Flying Camyp
were taken prisoners, removed to the city of New York,
and Davies with others was confined on board the prison
ships. In a few weeks he was sent to Long Island, and
exchanged on December. 7, 1780. While a prisoner he
had made a list of officers who were prisoners of war and
detaived in New York City aud on Long Island. This
docwmnent, which contained other important matter, he
exhibited in court in 1832, on muaking his affidavit for
pension, : '

As a prisoner, Davies must have had considerable lati-
tude allowed him, for it will be observed that his elopement
and marriage tovk place before he was exchanged.

An anecdote is related of a young man who once tried
to frighten Duavies. He had hid himself one night in the
Charlestown graveyard, and lay in- wait for Davies, who
was expected to pass that way late in the night. When
Hezekiah cime along, a fignre arose from behind a tomb-
stone and in a hollow voice exclaimed: «Stop, Mr. Davies.”

“Ha! who are vou, and what to you want with me®”
was the response.

“ You must, shortly he prepared to lie here?” said the.
ghost. ' '

“No, sir, Mr. Ghost, I shall not lie here. I intend to
yie in the Valley, in the Preshyterian gravevard :™ and Mr.
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Davies walked on. His words proved true, for to-day he
lies there, guietly sleeping among the dead.

Hezekiah Davies, having a strong constitntion. and
being very regular in habit, h\ el to the advanced age of
91 years. He died on the 2%th of December, 1837, and
was buried in the Presbyterian bury ring ground; Great
Vallev. The following is inscribed on hls tombstoue.

“In memory of Lieut. Hezekiah Davies, an officer in
the Revolution. who departed this life Dec. 27th, 1837, in
the 91st year of liis age.™

*See Appendix D.
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CHAPTER VI.

MRS. HARRIET ANDERSOXN.

B EFORE proceeding with a sketch of the life of Mrs’
Harriet Anderson, daughter of Hezekiah Daries,
3 and wife of Julins Anderson, it may be well to
o%=% glance at the history of another branch of the
family, from which she was descended.
The Schencks of Long Island were of Holland descent.
The first progenitur of the Bushwick (Long Island) branch
of the family was Johannes Schenk.* He was born in
Holland, Sept. 19, 1656, and came to America in 1683.
He was 2 man of learning, and had conferred npon him
the degree of J. U. D. (Juris utriusque Doctor; Doctor of
both Laws; Z e the Canon and -the Civil). His mother
was Margaretha Boe:khorst, who died April 12, 1688.—
According to Motlevt he was descended from an old and
influential family who could trace their ancestry back to

+~Memoir of Johannes Schenk,” by P. L sdhenck. M. D., Flatbush,
Long Island 1876 ..
-+ History of Tuited Netherlands.”™
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the time of Charlemagne in the eighth century. He mar-
ried, before leaving Holland, Magdalena de Hues. This
event doubtless occurred but a short time before their de-
partare for America, as they had no children born in
Holland., Johaunes died at Bushwick, L. I, Feb 5, 1746,
The Schencks ure very nnmerous, and it is unnecessury
to attempt an extended review of their history. Suffice to
say that Nicholus Schenck, father of Amne Schenck (see
page £2), was born -Sept. 4, 1732, and died April 3, 1810.
He married Wilhelmnpie Wyckoff, a lady four years his
junior. Anne, their third child,* was born March 19, 1763.
~ The Schencks were nearly all devoted to the cause of
liberty during the Revolutionary War. But it is said that
Nicholas’ sympathies were with the Tories. The “rebels”
. once disturbed the serenity of his household, as shown by
the following account of Gen. Jeremiah Johnson:
“ Hyler took a sergeant’s gnard at Canansie from the
.house of their Captain, Schenck. The. guards were at
supper and their muskets standing in the hall when he en-
tered. He seized the arms and, after jesting with the
guard, borrowed the silver spoons, took all their muskets
and a few other articles and made one prisoner. He then
sent the guards to report themselves to Col. Axtell and re-
turned to New Jersey.” '
The Tory version of the same affair 15 as follows:
« About 10 last Thursday night the house of Nicholas
Schenck, near three miles south of Flatbush, was supprised
by the crews of two Rebel whaleboats from Brumswick.

*See Appendix E.
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The family were at supper when the Rebels entered the
house, and of course not prepared to make any resistance.
They therefore took away everything they could carry,
wounded Peter Bogart, a lodger, of New York, in the side
with a bayonet, took: away his money and plate and the
plate of the family, to a considerable amount.” *

It will be remembered that Anne Schenck eloped with
Hezekiah Davies, the young “rebel” officer. When he
finally took his bride home, it is said he had no place pre-
pared to keep ‘her, and that they lived for a whilein a
spring-house loft on the Pritchard estate.t+ It will be re-
membered that they were married before his exchange.
"Their married life was happy, peaceable and guniet. Anne
‘died on Saturday, February 11th, 1826, near the hour of
noon, and was burried . on the following Monday, in the
Presbyterian burying ground, Great Valley. The following
inscription is made upon her tombstone:

“Ix MEMORY
of Anne, wife of Hezekiah Davies,
_ + who was born on Long Island,
:March 19th, 1763 and died Feby. 11th, 1826.

This churchyard bears an added stone,
The firéside shows a vacant chair,
Here sadness dwells and weeps alone,
. And Death displays her banner there.

' *Quoted by Onderdonk frem Gaine’s Mereury, June 18, 1781.
t1 bave in m?'l_lposw«lnn deeds belonging to this estate over a ceutury
and a half old. cy are written on very heavy parechment.
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The life has gone, the breath has fled, -
And what has been no more shall be;
The well-known form, the welcome tread;
0, where are they ; and where is she?”

Tne second verse of the above does not appear on the
tombstone, though the writer has in his pussession an old
paper containing perhaps the orlgma.l copy in the hand-
writing of Hezekiah Davies.

Harriet, second daughter of Hezekiah and Aumne
Davies, was born in Chester County on Saturday, July 3,
1784, at quarter after five o’clock P. u., and baptised on
Sunday, July 13, by the Rev. John Simontown. She was
of a literary turn of mind, and read a great deal.

On the death of her husband she supported herself for
"a time by teaching in the old Union School House, in the
meantime keeping house for her father. There were eight
children, Jerome, Isaac, Anne, Mary, I-Iezekla.h Adrianna,
Julius and John. Isaacdied in infancy. On reaching adult
age, Aune, Hezekiah and Julius went to Alexandria, Pa.,
then considered the “ West.” John, the youngest; went to
sea while a mere youth.

Yielding to the wishes of her children, she accompan-
ied her danghter, Adrianna, to Alexandria in the spring of
1842. On departing from the old homestead she was
heard to remark, “ How foolish I am to go away out west
to die!” These words were singularly prophetic, for in the
following spring she died from internal cancer, after suf-
fering great pain. She was buried in the Presbyterian
graveyard in Alexandria. -
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- In person Mrs. Anderson was of medium height, rather
fleshy, with blune eyes. She was'a member of the Presby-
terian church, and ler poetry as well as the character of
the books she read gave evidence of true piety. Her family
bible bears on it fly-leaf this inscription: “Brooklyn, July
1, 1820, Presented by Nicholas Schenck to Harriet Ander-
son, a8 a precious sonvenir of the Past.” Another volume
to which she seems to have heen much attached is “Jay’s
Evening and Morning Exercises,” comprising a text and
sermon for every day in the year. Among her religious
books were also Dr. Doddridge’s ¢ Rise and Progress of Re-
ligion in the Soul,” and “A Monument of Parental Affec-
tion.” On a fly-leaf of the latter book is inscribed, “Harriet
Anderson’s book : a present from her son, Jerome S. Ander-
son, A. D. 1824.” . «May I live the life of the righteous and
may my latter end be like his.” *

#These books are now in the possession of J. A. Riddle, Williams-
burg, Pa.



CHAPTER VIL

FAMILY OF WERSLER.

Progenitors of the Wersler Jumily. —  Particvipation in
public affuirs. — Brief account of descendants.
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HE progenitor of the Wersler family came to
2 America with five sons some time before the
. % breaking out of the Revolutionary War.

%‘%‘ He was an Episcopal minister, but on th

: : P18COP! . 2 o 0
BEL = ¥ commencementof the war, joined the Ameri-

can army with his five sons. '

After the close of the war, George Worsler, one of the
sons established a home near Oley, in Bucks County, Pa.
In this place he married Miss Anna Maria Guldin, in or-
about 1780. _ _

Shortly afteward Le purchased a saw-mill in what was
then Charlestown (now Schuylkill) Township, Chester

. County, and moved to that place. He owned also two
farms in that township, on one of which was bLuilt the
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Union Schoolhouse, mentioned in a furmer chapter.

In 1794, during the Whiskey Insurrection, Wer sler
raised a company of militia, of which he was elected cap-
tain. The company was encamped at Shippenshurg un-
til the trouble was over, when they were discharged and
sent home.

On his return home, Wersler devoted his attention to
farming and surveying -— to the latter quite extelxsi\;el)
These occupations he followed until the time of his death
which occurred on ’\Ia.v 14, 1832,

Of five thldren, the following survived him: -John

‘G., Rebecca and Elizabeth. He left the following docu-
ment to his executors :

Tue StBscrRIBER’s DEesikeEs 70 HIs EXECTTORS AND
Friexps, IN Tne NAME oF Gop, AMEN.

Taking into Consideration at this Day the ’\I(Sl'talit)' of
my Natural Life and how Short and how une:\pected it
May he Ended, ....... Ceesaenes A P

(1) My desire is this that as Soon as the Breath of
Life has forsaken me, and Left my Body a Corps To lay
out the Same in a Common and Decent Manner, and then
Send to Thomas Iewellin to make a Coffin' Such a one as
my Children may Direct, with a (.,ase of White Oak to
lay the coffin in.

(2) -Aply to the Sexton at the time l)elng to Sink a
Grave at a Stake in Second row west aposite Judge Rus-
" ton’s Tomb Stone.
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(3) AsTIhave Spoken to the Rev. Mr. Guldin to give
my followers a funeral Sermon at my Burial, he is to take
hyms at his discretion, But the funeral Text I long since
Selected out of the 31st Psalm, 5th verse :

Zu deine Huende besuche ick dir meinen Geist. - D
hust mich erloest Herr i getreuer Gott. :

(4) If you can conveniently Get two Practical Stir-
vevors with two other Neighbors to carry the Corps frome
Buring room to the Hearse &c. ........vnute, Ceeeans

" John Beaver and George Hartman would be exceptable
at this time. ,

(3) The Rev. Bringley’s 'presence would be very a-
greeable if not too troublesome & to take part in the fu-
neral Sermon.

(6) As to monument or head and foot stone, I leave
it to the. Discretion of my Children.

Written the above with my own hand Mouday the ith
Day of April, 1828.

GrorceE WERSLER.

Joux G. WERSLER,

John G. Wersler, son of the above, was born Feb. 20,
1781, in Charlestown Township. His education was ac-
quired in the Union School, situated on one corner of his
_ father’s farm. When old enough, he fxequentlv accom-
panied his father on his surveying trips'as an assistant.
Being a very apt scholar in mathsmaties, he soon master-
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ced the art, and afterwards followed it for himself, when
his father became too okd. .

He marricd, in 1810, Miss Maria Davis, caughter of
Hezekiah, a sketch of whose life has been given.

On the cutbreak of the war of 1812, Le recruited a
company of volunteers, and was given a captain’s com-
migsion. Iis company joined the Second Regiment of
Pennsylvanis Volunteers, Col, Lewis Bache connnanding.
Wersler was in the service three months, or more.. :

In 1807 he had been commissioned, by Gov, MeKean,
ensign of the comimny of light inihnti}'z attached to the
First Battalion of the 44th Regt. of Pennsylvania Militia,
2nd Brigade, 8rd Division, composed of the counties of
(Lester, Lelewme. TLis con.mission was renewed in 1811
by Gov. Snyder, who also commissioned him Major of. the
First Batt., 57th Regiment, of the Pennsylvania Militia.
He received a captain’s ccinmission from Gov. Hiester on
Aug. 8, 1821, and a major’s commission on Sept. 1 of the
same year,

In civic offices, Mr. Wersler was appointed deputy
sheriff under George Hartman in 1810, and in March 23,
1818, was appomted and c(xmissioned by the Governcr,
Clerk and Protkonotary of the Court of Chester County.

He had éight_children : their names are Milton, Anna
Maria, George; Hezekiah Davis, Harriet M., Annie D., A,
Horatio, and William L. They all survived him.

MILTON WERSLENR.

Milton, the eldest son of John G. Wersler, was born
Dec. 14, 1811, in West Chester, and in the old jail build.
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ing, while Lis father Leld the office of deputy sheriff. His
earilest recollection is that of the prisoners carrying him
aronnd the jail. '

He married, in 1847, Elizabeth, daughter of Wm. C.
Conard. During the first year of his married life, he
live:1 with his father on the farm. For this service he re-
ceived %100, with which sum he paid house rent and pro-
vided for himself and wife. He rented the place the.next
year and farmed it until the sprin'g of 1881, when be re-
"“moved to an adjoining farm which he had purchased in
1878 from his father’s estate. _

He had five children: William C., John G., Clement
L., Susanna C., and George B. McClellan.

ANNA MARIA ( WERSLER) RAPP.
Anna_Maria, second child of John G. Wersler, was born
March 28, 1813. She is .a woman of considerable intelli-
gence. While a young lady, ske went to Williamsburg,
Pa., where she taught school..  On. her return to Chester
County, she married Benjamin Rapp, in 1854.  She has
since resided in Schuylkill Township and has no children.

GEORGE WERSLER.

George Wersler was born Feb. 1, 1816.  In 1847 he
married Elizabeth Beaver, daughter of George Beaver, of
Great Valley. - For a while after his marriage, he lived
on his father’s farm. He afterward moved to a farm be-
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longing to his father-in-law and again to cne owned Ly
‘Wm. Wayne, near Paoli. :

On the death of his father-in-law, he puuhase(l the old
Beaver homestead ‘and moved back to it. The celebrated
« Diamond Rock ” is situated upon this property, ﬂ.lbO the
old Dm.mond Rock Schoolhouse.

His children are M. Louise, Annie M., Ella, Ida IR,
Lizzie H., Geo. B., Clara T., Emma W, John G,

HEZEKIAH D. WERSLER.

Died Oct. 10, 1820, aged one year, seven months, and
twenty-two days.

HARRIET M. WERSLEIL.

Harriet M. was born March 12, 1820. She married
Thomas E. Hamptoxl Sept. 7,1839, and lived with him on
a farm which they purhased in Charlestown Township in
1852. In 1879 they sold this place and removed to a lot
on her father’s estate, known as the « Saw Mill Place.”

She died Feb. 19, 1882. Her children were Stephen
L., Mary E., Milton. W., Elmira C., Jobn G.

ANNIE D. WERSLER.

Annie D. was born January 13, 1821. She never mar-
ried, but kept house for her father until the time of his
death, She now lives with her sister, Mrs. Rapp.
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ALBERT H. WERSLER.

Albert H. Wersler was born January 12, 1824. He
was apprenticed to learn the carpenter’s trade, and after-
ward worked as journeyman many years. He removed to
Tippecanoe O. still following his trade. In I852 he
married Miss Mary Christie of that place.

. Soon after his arrival in Tippecanoe, he was elected
surveyor, and has since held the office of mayor.

Following are the names of his children : John,
Henry, Annie, Sally, Hattie, Lizzie, Willie, Albert.

WILLIAM L. WERSLER,

Wm. L. Wersle: was born Dec 31, 1827. When of a-
bout twenty years of age, he went to learn the pnnter s
trade under John Hodgson, editor of the « Jeffersonian,”
at West Chester. The occupation not agreeing with him,
he returned to his father’s farm, upon which he worked un-
til his father’s death. He afterward lived with his brother
Milton, and again with his nephew, M. W. Hampton. He
now resides with Benjamin Rapp.



SHAPTER VIII
A brief account of the deqcenddnts of Julius Anderson.

2 AVING. now traced the history of those of

2 the Anderson family who have preceded us,

. we will next turn our attention to present

W3 generations. I shall not attempt to give an

9@ extended account, as such was not originally

e the object of this brief sketch of family his-

'tory_. - The first-born of Jujius Anderson dying in early
childhood, we will begin with a brief account of

JEROME 8. ANDERSON.

Jerome 8. was the second child of Julius Anderson.
After the death of his father in 1822, he lived a short
time with his mother, who made her home with her father,
Hezekiah Davies. He then went to the city of New Yerk
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and leéarned the printer’s trade. While there he became
acquainted with Somers, a popular Baptist minister. It
was doubtless through his influence that Anderson left
the printer’s cace and commenced studying for the minis-
tix. With this intent Le entered Brown’s University
ax\d ;_rrftduaxe,d at that institution, having paid the expenses
of his education by his own effort. He was finally ordain-
ed a minister of the gu&pel and his first charoe was in
Newark, New Jersey Te was afterward oﬂered an ap-
pointment in \Luth.L s Viney a.rd but objected to living
on an island. He accepteid a charge in Stonington, Conn.
In this place he labored until failing health compelled
him to abandon the pulpit.

He was mried twice, and left a son, Jerome S. Ander-
son, by Lis second wife, Miss Catharine Douglass. After
a lingering illuess, he finally died in Philadelphia of con-
sumption.¥

MARY A

Was born in 1510, On the death of her father, she
went to live with a family by the name of Whiteside, as
her mother was not able to support all her little ones, eight
in number. She afterward lived in the family of John
Davis, or “Pivkering Johnny,” as he was familiarly called.

At the age of cighteen she married Jacob Rossiter, a
millwright l)v trade. They lived on the “Saw Mill Place,”
and various other pla«.ea and finally Lought a lot and
lmilt- a perma.nm'lt- home it the “Corner Stores.”

* \lthough f corresponded with the family of Mr. Anderson, | wus
unable to obtain the dutes of his birth, marrinage and death.
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On the death of her husband, she sold the lomestead
and removed to Phoenixville in 1878, where tk» fiow re-
sides with her daughter Addie.

Her children wara Jero-nz, Lizsie, Harint, A TH o
ker, Franzes Marion and Kate.  The first two (‘(]L\L in In-
fapey.

CANNIE D,

Annpie D. Anderson was bern Qctober 20, 1807, in
Chester County, Pa. Her-education consisted wmerely of
the rudiments of the common bzanclies which she ac-
quired while attending the school taught by Ler mother.
Later, she learned the trade of dressmmaker in Philadel-
Pphia. This occupation she followed for a number of years,
removing afterward to Alexandria, Huntington Co., Pa.,
where ber brothers Julius and Hezekiah lm,d alr ead\' es-
tablished themselves as millwrights, Iere Anrie opened
a store and continued her occupation of dressmaking.

In autumn of the same year, 1842, Ler mother, her sis-
ter Adrianna, and a cousin, Miss Willielmine Shriver
(now Mrs. Kennedy), amived. It will be romembered
that the mother died the following spring.

Her brother Hezekiah, having Inenouslv married the
da.ughter of Mr. John Biddle, of Williamshurg, Pa., An-
nie, shortly after‘her establishment in busmess in- Alexan-
dria, a.(,t,ompa.med her brother on a visit to the Biddles,
where she met John, a soa of the above.  This acquain-
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tance resulted in love and marriage, as shown by tie £l
lowing entry in an old family Bible :

¢ John Biddle and Annie D. Anderson were married
at Alexandria by Rev. Peoples on May 25, 1843.”

She at once left her home in Alexand:ia for one with
her hushand on the Biddle homestead, situated on Clover
Creek. That her absence from the old fireside was keenly
felt by those she left behind, is attested by the followmg
lines written in her albuin by her sister, Adrianna.

“Farewell ! whate'er my lot may be,
Tho tossed on 1ife’s tempestuouns sen,

Till every nerve in death shall thrill,
T'll love thee, love thee, love thee still.

“Should storms of sorrow o'er my path .
-Unfold their raven wings of wrath,

Or pleasurc strew my path with flowers,
Y1l change not with life's changing hours.

“Sister, farewell! May peace thy steps attend
Till lite’s brief pilgrimage sball end;

Then may we meet on that bright shore,
‘Where fu,ewell tears are shed no more.”

Few men are blessed with better wives than was Johi
Biddle, the husband of Annic. We need not dwell up:n
the thrifty, happy, but unevent{ul, life that followel.

In March, 1876, she was seize:l with an'attack of appo-
plexy which produced a partial loss of metnory and speech
with at- times most glocmy and distressing feelings,
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From this stroke she partially recovered, but her vomfort-
able moments were always followed by others of gloomy
c.epresuo_n. On Eaturday night Irecedmg Ler dcath, ske
was seized with tevere vomiting, which caused inter ‘nal
inflamation and weakness, increasing until the hour of her
death on the following Tuesday, Dec. 81, 1878.

For the Iast twenty years of Ler life Mrs. Biddle was
a member of the Pres. Church of Williamsburg, having
been baptized in that faith many vears before.  She was -
the mother of two children.  The first died in infancy ;
John, the second, survives her and resides near Williams-
burg. '

ADRIANA 5.

Adriana 8. Anderson was born Sept. 12, 1812, while her
father ‘was absent in the war. After her fathet s death,
she lived with her aunt Julia Davies and gx andfather Hez-
eklah Davies. After her brother Jerome's marrmge, she
was invited to live with him in Newark N.:J. Here
she lived for a time, attending ‘school.  She lived with
her brother after he took up lis residence in Stonington.

Removmg to Philadelphia she learned the miliner’s trade
on North Second St. with a family named Abby.

On the removal of her sister Annie and Drothers Julius
and Hezekiah to Alexandria, Adriana and her mother
changed their home to that place, where she and Amiic
carried ou the. trade of millinery and dressinaking anil
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selling: fancy articles of dress. Their brothers above
ngmed assisted them in fitting up their store.

On March 1, 1848, she was married to Eli Lloyd by
the Rev. William Gibson. In 1851 she and her husband
moved west to Dixon, Tllinois, where they purchased a
farm. Not satisfied with the country, they sold out and
returned to Pa., after about & year’s sojourn in the West.
But the .rough roads, stony fields, and rugged mountains
had lost their charms ; or, at least, the West seemed, on
the whole, more attractive for 1853 they removed again to
Dixon where they finally purchased a farm of Julius B.
.Anderson, Adrianna’s brother, on the Three Mile Branch,
two and one half miles southwest of Dixon. On this a
mnmomous houre was built, while. onlv twn other houses
were visible on the wide, bleak prairie.

The howling of the wind .by day and the wolf at night
were soon familiar, though none the less dismal sounds.
'An occasional deer was seen bounding across the mead-
ows, and the wild “ prairie chickens” were numerous.

AAdditimal PUAC]'IE.:(“! of adjoining land were made and
tke cccupaticn of faiming continued until the autumn of
1878, when a house was purchased in Dixon, then a thriv-
‘ing town'_of about 5,000 inhabitants.

Three children were born to them: Julius A., Catherine
E* and Anna M. The latter died in infancy.

HEZEKIAH D.

After his father’s death Hezekiah was sent to live with a

* The tollowing lines were written by her & short time before her
(death and a._ﬁ:erward found among her brother’s papers.
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man by the namé of John McCurdy. He was born
April 2, 1814 and was about elght years of age ‘when his

With folded arms and upturned face,
‘Quietly I take wy pluce
With those that rest.
Alone P'll occupy the halls
Composed of four poor narrow walls
Of mother earth.

With heavy heart, I watch the sky
And see the sunset fade and dle.
Then weep and cry.
My heart grows fainter every duy;
I would a little longer stay.
Hoi time does fly!

With feeble hands I fold away

The things I've worn from day to day,
Now useless all.

I’ll don a habit new and strange,

Of fashion that will never change
Till Jugdment’s call.

How wasted now seem all the years !
How full of foolish hopes and fears’
Beyond reeull !
I've done with hope and life and Iove.
I know my Helper is above,
“That comforts me.

My faith looks forward to the day,
I know it 18 not tar away,
When he will come.
And Zion shall again behold
The $Son of God whom Judas solid
In triumph reign.

Then will the sea give up her dead,
(UXFINISHED.)
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father died. He remained with McCurdey until he was
sixteen years of atre, when he left to learn- the shoemaker’s
trade. He soon changed his plans, however; and went to
learn the trade of millwright under his brother-in-law, Jacob
Rossiter. Remaining with the latter about five years, he,
in 1839, m company with his brother J ulius, made a tour
through western Pennsylvania and Ohio, returning home
-in the autumn of 1840 ; and in the spring of 1841, went
to Alexandria, Pa., to follow their trade, Julius being also
“a millwright. On November 11, 1851, Hezekish manied
Miss Drusanna Biddle, sister to John Blddle, who had
pl‘e\'iously married Anne Anderson.

“After living in Alexandria one year, he moved to Pat-
tonsville, Bedford Co., Pa. Tn 1855 he removed to Dixon,
111, where he followed the occupation of fa.rmi_ng-' until his
deuth, which occurred May 10, 1870. He was buried in
Oak Wood Cemetary.

The McCurdeys, being Methodists, he had been in-
~ structed in that faith, and was a consistent member of that
church. His children were Mary C., Jerome B., (xeorge
W., Charles A., John W., Anne E., Salome, Virginia,
Frank and Homer.

JULITS B.

Julius Baton Anderson was born April 17,1816. When
about nine years of age, he was sent to live with Benja-
min Boyer, near Valley Forge. © Remaining there until
his snteenth year, he went to live with General George
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Hartman, uncer whom his father had served in the war of
1812. After 1ema.1'nrg with the latter family one vear,
he entered that of his brother-in-law, Jacob Rosslter, to
learn the millwright’s trade. - In 1839 he made the tonr
above mentioned with his brother Hezekiah.  Changing
his hope in 1841 to Huntmgton Co., Pa., he found occu-
pation in building and repziring mills along the Juniata.
On the of fifth Maich, 1845, Le married Miss Elizabeth
Lloyd, of Huntingten Valley. In the spring of 1850 he
removed to Iixon, Iliincis, beiug tle first of the family
to venture to the “ far west.”

An incident of the journey is worth relating. At Pitts-
burg, Mr. Anderson and John Porter were delegated tu
select a steamer on which their party were to travel dow:
the Ohio River. Anderson chose one, Porter, another-
Each argued in favor of his choice, but Porter finally gave
up, and the party embarkeil on the hoat chosen by And-
erson. On its pasrage down, the hoat gelected by Porter
hlew up, and many lives were Icst. By a curious co-inci-
dence, a man by the name of Anderson was killed.

Disembarking at Peru, Illinois, tle party. proceedéd by
stage to Dixon. The roads lieing’ very muddy, the horses
were swamped and came to a stand- stlll The male pass-
_engers were obliged to alight, belp the women out, put
their shoulders to the wheels and lift the stage coach from
the mire. After a somewhat tedious  journey they arrived
in Dixon at two o’clock in the mormng

Although following his trade in lis new home, he lived
on a farm for a short time and bought snd sold several
farms on: which he realized considerable profit. He help-
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ed to huild the first flour-nill in. Dixon, there being only
a saw-mill when he came, and no railroads. One day as
he and his wife sat at dinner, they saw through the win-
dow the first train on the Tllinois Central cross the bridge
over Rack River.

Their children are Harriet T and Adriana M., one hav-
ing died in infaney.

JOUN W,

Jolm Wersler Anderson was beorn February 17, 1823,
This, it will be remembered, was after the death of his
father. In early chil:ilhood he attended the school taught
by his mother. At the age of ten he went to live with
his brother Jerome at Newark, N. J. He went with the
latter to* Stonington where he a.ttended gchool until six-
teen years of age.

While yet a child he had conceived a desire to roam by
) hen,rmg hlb aunt Julia Davies read stories of travel aml
adventure. To gratify this desire, he ran away from home
to go to sea.. He went to Mystic, near by, where he fell
in with' sowe sailors preparing a vessel for sea, who set
him to tending a fire under a pitch kettle.

Here his brother found him and tried to pursuade him
to return llon_le., but in vain, He a('('m'(hn(rh set «ail ‘in
the .Atlas, a whaler of about 300 tons lmr(len_, with one
brig in attendance, Captain Barnum commanding. The
fi =* vovage was to the Cape Verde Islands. Here both
t".0 Atlus and Inigr were wrecked on a reef with the loss
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of one mau.  The crew were pulled ashore in a basket
by means of ropes. After sixty days, twenty-two of them
were taken off by a French man-of-war, the others heing
obliged to remain. Anderson and Captain Barnum were
transferred 1o an American wkaler cubsequently hailed in
passage, and landed at Cape Town, whence they found:
passage home in an American merchanfman.

The se;ond voyage was made to the samme islands to .
rescue the men who had Leen left. On their arrival, Low-
ever, they found that the men had built a shallop andhad
gone, leaving only the goat and pigs. After obtaining a
cargo of oil, the vessel retumed home after a voyage of
eleven months. :

Anderson’s third xoyaue was in the ship Bluclcstone as
a petty officer under Captain Pendleton. The course
taken was around Cape Horn to whaling grounds in the
Pacific, after a cargo of sperm oil.  After 800 barrels of
oil had been stowed down, the vessel cruised along the’
western coast of South America, touching at various
points and ascendlng some of the rivers. While redoub-
ling the cape in a gale of wind, the vessel spr. ang a leak.
The captain broke cargo and stopped the leak, but had to
run into Rio Janeiro for repairs, after lying in quarantine
two weeks. After recruiting for the loss of two men, the
ship sailed on its homeward course. The voyage home oc-
cupied three months  When entering the ].ome port the
vessel had to be made fast to a steamhoat to keep.
her from sinking.

The next voyage was in the shlp Byron, under Capt.
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Beck, in company with another whaling vessel, and the
course taken was the same as in the last voyage. The
vessels, however, parted company after being several
days out. The Byron sighted the coast of Pa.atronu and
anchored in the Galligus Rlver to wait for the ()ther vessel.
The ships now headed their course for the Falkland Tsl-
ands. On the passage two rm'ht whales were captured.
DPuring: this ev(ploﬂ. Anderson was knocked out of his
boat l)v one of the whales and had one of his shoulder
hones broken. He ivas pulled into the boat by a negro. -He
was off duty two months. Near Falkland Islands 3.000
sealskins were taken in and one whale captured. The
-vessels next heaced for the Shetland Islands, where the
Richard Henry, which had accompanied the Byrow i
the voyage, was wrecked in a storm.. The latter was af:
terward wrecked on a kelp reef dwing the night. At
eleven o’clock P. M. the crew deserted her in boats and
made for Big American Bay. She was shortly afterward
rescued, however, and put to sea. On tke third day the

ship Wursaw wa3 haile 1, under command of Capt. Barn- '
um, Anderson’s former commander. The latter ship be-.
ing short of hands, Anderson re-entered the service of his
old Capain as boat steerer. Mrs. Barnum, an old friend of
Anderson’s, was on board. The. V.5 doubled Cape
Horn and cruised along the coast of South America, tak-
ing in 800 barrels of sperm oil. Near the Three Marias, she
was warned off the coast hy the American ship Constitutiosn
on account of the Mexican war which had been recently
declared.
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A part of the crew mutinied and were delivered into
the hands of the American Consuj when the ship touched
at Rio Janeiro. When Anderson finally arrived home,
he had been ahsent three years and eleven days,

After a brief stay with his relatives in Stonington and
Chester County, he went to Blair County Pa., where, as
we hive seen, 12 namber of his brothers and sisters had al-
ready located.

Here he married Miss Eiz 1‘1et‘1 Smith. He lived for a
short time on a fann in Blair Co., sold out and followed
still. farther west his brothers and sisters who had settled
at Dixon, IlL.

He purchased a farm two and one half miles southwest
of Dixon, adjacent to the one purchased by Eli Lloyd, his
brother-in-law, where for a numher of years he followed
the occupation of farming. He then sold this and moved
to the sputhern part of the state. He soon returned with his
family to Dixon, where he now resides, following the oc-
‘cupation of druggist. .

His children were Anna Maria, Adridna, Charles, Will-
jam, Julius, and Edward. William and - Edward are the
only ones now living.
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ArPENDIN A.

The writer has in his possession a copy of a commission
granted to Patrick Anderson. It hegins as follows :.

“In the NAME and by the AUTHORITY of the
" FREEMEN of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania The
SUPREME EXECUTIVE COUNCIL of said Comamon-
wealth To Patrick Andesson, E squire.

WE, reposing especial Trust and Confidence in your
Patriotism, Valor,. Conduet, and Fidelity, DO, by thesa
Presents constitute and ﬂP]‘Omt vou to.be

CAPTAIN of a company of foot &c, & in the Penn-
sylvania State Regiment .. .......... " ete.

Arrespix B.

In a letter in l.II_)-' posession, dated at Washington, Dec.
17, 1804, Isanc Andersem, while a member of Congress,
says: “The recession of the Territory of Columbia is
pemhm The -constitutionality: of the measure is doubted.
It that should not be in the way, I am clearly. of the opin-
don that we ought to recede.”

) Arvrgpxpix

The follywiag are some of the articles with their esti-
mated values, as reported by the appraisers of the estate
of Julius Anderson :

Watch...... A $0. 00
Bedstead and Bedding .......... 20, (0
Woinan's Saddle .. ... S 2. 00
Cradle ........ e et 25

Brov. 1 Mare, Sadelle and Bridle. . .60, 00
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A Lot of Horse Gears .......... 8 .00
3 Cow Chains....ovvvenennnne.. 0.
Big Spinning Wheel (wod)..... .25
()ld Man’s Saddle........ e .20
Dough Trough ........... 0000 25
I)ut(-h Oven o, i veneeiennennnn 373

AprPExXDIX ).

In a letter to Nicholas Schenck, dated April 23, 1783
Mr. Davies says that he has a fine daughter, then nearly a
year old, n&med Willempie.* 1In a.nothel dated Sept. 2
1785, he says : « Little Willie has grown to be a fine (rl!‘l
and can speak almost as distinct as any. We are .llmuf
wea,mng Harriet, who has nnlnedlateh the countenance
of I\lck and has not proved =o troublesome a child as

Wimpy.”
' ArpeXDIX K.

Through kindness of Mrs. Elizabeth Remsen of Flat
Bush, Long Island, I have copies of family records fromn
old Bibles in the Schenck family.  Mrs. Davies’ mother
was born Dec. 24, 1730,

* Another form of the name Wilhelmine.

THE END.





